If you have issues viewing or accessing this file contact us at NCJRS.gov.

**U.S. Department of Justice** Office of Justice Programs



## **CRIME LABORATORIES 1988:**

A KEY PROGRAM OF STATE DRUG CONTROL STRATEGIES

# Bureau of Justice Assistance





CRIMINAL JUSTICE STATISTICS ASSOCIATION

## **U.S. Department of Justice** Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Assistance

**U.S. Department of Justice** Dick Thornburgh Attorney General

Office of Justice Programs Richard B. Abell Assistant Attorney General

Bureau of Justice Assistance Gerald "Jerry" P. Regier Acting Director

James C. Swain Director, Policy Development and Management Division

Curtis H. Straub II Director, State and Local Assistance Division

Eugene H. Dzikiewicz Director, Discretionary Grant Programs Division

William F. Powers Director, Special Programs Division

#### Disclaimer

This is supported by Cooperative Agreement #87-DD-CX-K049 awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The Assistant Attorney General, Office of Justice Programs coordinates the following program offices and bureaus: the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Bureau of Justice Statistics, National Institute of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, and the Office for Victims of Crime. This publication does not represent the official position or policies of this agency. U.S. Department of Justice Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance 633 Indiana Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20531 (202) 724-5974

## **CRIME LABORATORIES 1988:**

## A Key Program of State Drug Control Strategies

by

James "Chip" R. Coldren, Jr. Kenneth R. Coyle Sophia D. Carr

May 1990

A Special Analysis Report of the Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment

Prepared by the

Criminal Justice Statistics Association 444 N. Capitol Street, N.W. Suite 606 Washington, DC 20001 (202) 624-8560

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This report required the hard work and support of the entire staff of the Criminal Justice Statistics Association. The authors wish to thank their fellow staff, and specifically those who put in extra efforts to prepare and edit this report -- Hildy Saizow, Kellie Dressler, Scott Mutchler, Loyce Craft, and Karen Gasson.

Ms. Pat Malak of the Bureau of Justice Assistance deserves special thanks for her support and guidance since the inception of the Consortium project, and for her recognition of the special value of state-based research. Robert Kirchner, BJA Grant Monitor for this effort, deserves special recognition as well for his strong and constant support of the states and the Consortium project.

The Drug Consortium Advisory Committee, chaired until recently by Mary Mande of Colorado and currently by Mike Sabath of Indiana, deserves our thanks as well. We appreciate their professional commitment to the success of this project and their constructive comments throughout the development of this report.

A special thanks is offered to John O'Connell and Richard Porter, the Consortium liaisons for the crime laboratory project, for their review of this report and constructive input.

A wholehearted thanks goes to the representatives from the 14 states whose hard work and dedication to the Consortium project made this report possible. It is these people that make this project both unique and most worthwhile.

#### 124329

#### U.S. Department of Justice National Institute of Justice

This document has been reproduced exactly as received from the person or organization originating it. Points of view or opinions stated in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the National Institute of Justice.

Permission to reproduce this examinated material has been granted by

Publi	le Don	lain/(	)JP/	BJA	
<u>U.S.</u>	Depar	tment	: of	Jus	tice

to the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS).

Further reproduction outside of the NCJRS system requires permission of the

#### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment, a multi-state research initiative on drug enforcement activity, collects and analyzes information on the drug-related workload and operations of crime laboratories. This research focuses on 66 crime laboratories from 14 states, many of which received formula grant funds from the Bureau of Justice Assistance for drug enforcement programs under the Anti-Drug Abuse Acts of 1986 and 1988. The Consortium performs these research activities as part of a long-term effort to monitor and evaluate drug control strategies.

This report presents information on the sample of crime laboratories for calendar year 1988. It covers laboratory type, size, personnel composition, and expenditures; types of law enforcement agencies submitting suspected controlled substances for analysis; types of substances (drugs) identified; and average turnaround time for completion of analysis.

Many states used their formula grant funds to enhance crime laboratories' capabilities to keep pace with rising drug arrests. Crime laboratories should be monitored and analyzed to see if enhancement programs are achieving desired results. Crime laboratory data on drugs identified through laboratory analysis provide useful information for policy planners. The information in this report is a first step in the Consortium's long-term assessment of crime laboratory enhancement programs as important components of drug control strategies. It provides critical information on the characteristics and activities of crime laboratories.

#### HIGHLIGHTS

- The reporting crime laboratories analyzed 343,798 suspected controlled substances in calendar year 1988. Forty percent (40%) of the substances identified were cannabis, and 33% were cocaine. Approximately 9% of analyses completed were for non-controlled substances.
- Average turnaround time for completion of analysis ranged from 1 to 99.9 days, with over 50% of crime laboratories reporting an average turnaround time of two weeks or less.
- These crime laboratories spent a total of \$17,103,354 in calendar year 1988, with an average operating budget of approximately \$150,000. Crime laboratories spent \$2,516,235 for equipment purchases in 1988, nearly all (99%) of which went toward the purchase of analysis equipment.
- These crime laboratories received an estimated 273,739 requests for analysis of suspected controlled substances in calendar year 1988. Most requests (54%) were made by municipal law enforcement agencies; 21% were made by state agencies. Trend data for 1988 show 6% to 18% increases in requests for analysis for agencies that account for the greatest percentage of crime lab analysis requests.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	ii
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	iii
TABLE OF CONTENTS	••• v
LIST OF FIGURES AND TABLES	vi
INTRODUCTION	1
The Need for Information on Crime Laboratories Crime Laboratories Cases in the Analysis	$\begin{array}{c} \ldots 1 \\ \ldots 1 \\ \ldots 2 \end{array}$
CRIME LABORATORY CHARACTERISTICS	4
CRIME LABORATORY CASELOADS AND EXPENDITURES	4
Trends in Requests for Analysis	6 6
DRUGS IDENTIFIED IN CRIME LABORATORIES	7
Turnaround Time for Analyses Completed         Trends in Analyses Completed and Turnaround Time	8 8
STATE-BY-STATE COMPARISONS	8
Summary	16
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	17
APPENDIX A	
The Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment	19
APPENDIX B	
State Representatives to the Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment	25
APPENDIX C	
Review of Data Limitations	31
APPENDIX D	
Summary Crime Laboratory Data Tables	35
REFERENCES	44

## LIST OF FIGURES

1988 Requests for Analysis by Type of Requesting Agency	5
Drug Analyses Completed in 1988 by Substance Identified	8
Cannabis and Cocaine Analyses Completed	9
Consortium Blueprint for Data Collection 2	2
States Participating in the Consortium Project 2	3

## LIST OF TABLES

Characteristics of Crime Laboratories 4
Requests for Analysis by Type of Agency Requesting 5
Comparison of Median Number of Requests for Analysis for Three Agency Types
1988 Equipment Purchases by Crime Laboratories
1988 Drug Analyses Completed by Crime Laboratories
1988 Requests for Analysis by State and Requesting Agency Type 10
Total Number of Analyses Completed by State and Substance Identified
Staff and Workload Indicators by State and         Laboratory       14
Comparison of Cannabis and Cocaine Analyses Completed in Various States

#### INTRODUCTION

Under the Anti-Drug Abuse Acts of 1986 and 1988, the states and local units of government received Federal discretionary and formula grant funds for drug enforcement and criminal justice system improvement activities. Approximately 65% of the funding was used for drug enforcement programs. Many states used the enforcement funds to enhance crime laboratories for expediting the prosecution of drug cases. With enhanced funding, it was hoped, the crime laboratories could increase the number of cases processed and reduce turnaround time for analyses.

#### The Need for Information on Crime Laboratories

Crime laboratories are a critical juncture in narcotics law enforcement. All suspected controlled substances that will be used as evidence in court must be identified through laboratory analysis. Drug policy decisionmakers need two types of information regarding crime laboratories to understand their operations and assess their need for resources:

- 1. Descriptive information regarding crime laboratory resources, operations, and expenditures; and
- 2. Information regarding crime laboratory performance and the results of drug testing.

This information helps decisionmakers identify the needs of crime laboratories as drug arrests increase due to law enforcement initiatives. It also provides information regarding drug types identified through analysis, which contributes to a description of the drug problem.

This report examines a sample of crime laboratories from 14 states to begin assessing the nation's progress in the enforcement of drug laws.<sup>1</sup> While this information is considered preliminary, it provides descriptions of the characteristics and operations of crime laboratories in the states. In the years to come, when information on crime laboratories becomes more complete, it will provide the basis for drug control strategy impact assessments and evaluations.

#### **Crime Laboratories**

The Consortium project defines a crime laboratory as:

"...a forensic laboratory that performs analysis of suspected controlled substances obtained by law enforcement agencies through arrest or investigation..."

The 14 states contributing to the data presented in this report include:

Arizona Connecticut District of Columbia<sup>2</sup> Indiana Michigan Montana New Jersey Pennsylvania Ohio South Dakota Texas Utah Virginia Washington

<sup>1</sup> Consortium states collect crime laboratory information on a continuous basis. The information in this report reflects data collection through December of 1989. Updates to data for 1988 crime laboratory activities have been made, which will be reflected in future reports.

<sup>2</sup> Referred to as a state throughout this report.

#### **Cases in the Analysis**

This report presents data on 66 crime laboratories from 14 states, of which 42 received formula grant funds from BJA under the Anti-Drug Abuse Acts during calendar year 1988.<sup>3</sup> The sample is not representative of all crime laboratories; it was chosen for the laboratories' willingness and ability to provide descriptive information. Important details regarding these units of analysis are offered below. Each laboratory provides information covering descriptive and operational aspects, including:

- descriptive information regarding laboratory type and number of examiners employed, and types of agencies requesting analysis of suspected controlled substances; and
- statistics on expenditures, caseloads, analyses completed, controlled substances identified, and average turnaround time to completion of analysis.

#### Scope of the Report

This report has three primary objectives:

- describe a sample of crime laboratories according to personnel, size, and jurisdictions served;
- analyze and compare expenditure and caseload trends; and
- present information regarding the drugs identified in crime laboratories and analysis turnaround time.

This report presents an analysis of crime laboratory data in three separate sections--Crime Laboratory Characteristics, Crime Laboratory Caseloads and Expenditures, and Drugs Identified in Crime Laboratories. These sections present information on 54 crime laboratories that provided information covering the entire 1988 calendar year. Each section contains tables and charts with accompanying text. A section follows with state-by-state comparisons on specific variables. A final section reviews crime laboratory information and suggests the usefulness of crime laboratory data for drug control strategy monitoring and evaluation. Appendix A provides a review of the Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment. Appendix B presents a list of the current state representatives to the Consortium project. Appendix C reviews crime laboratory data limitations and provides a review of variations found in crime laboratory data and their impact on analysis. Appendix D presents summary crime laboratory data for all crime laboratories in the sample regardless of whether they provided information covering the entire 1988 calendar year.

Consortium states provide information regarding some laboratories that have not received federal assistance funding. These are included in the crime laboratory analysis.

#### CRIME LABORATORY CHARACTERISTICS

Crime laboratories reporting to the Consortium are largely state-operated, though most serve local law enforcement agencies. The staffs of crime laboratories range in size from 1 to 125, with an average staff size of 13.<sup>4</sup>

Successful prosecution of drug offenders depends on efficient and responsive crime laboratory operations, since all suspected controlled substances must be identified. Normally, substance identification is performed by a State or local crime laboratory. Crime laboratories also analyze substances obtained through law enforcement investigations and drug removals. This provides valuable intelligence information regarding purity levels, drug types circulating on the streets, drug sources, and new drugs.

Information about crime laboratories is useful for drug strategy impact assessment in two ways:

- It adds to the knowledge of drug prosecution priorities since most crime laboratories give priority to cases going to court.
- Caseload information provides a gauge of system efficiency at a critical juncture in the prosecution process.

Consortium states provided information for 54 crime laboratories covering the entire 1988 calendar year<sup>5</sup>, 42 (78%) of which received Federal assistance (for crime laboratory enhancement programs) and 12 (22%) of which did not. This section examines descriptive characteristics for all 54 crime laboratories.

Crime laboratories in the Consortium states are mostly state-operated (76%), ranging in size from 1 to 125 full-time equivalent examiners (Table 1).<sup>6</sup> The ratio of full-time drug examiners to all examiners in a laboratory, on average, is 1 to 3. Sixty eight percent (68%) of the crime laboratories dedicate less than one-half of their full-time equivalent examiners to drug analysis, while 32% dedicate one-half or more of their full-time equivalent examiner staff to drug analysis. Table 1 reviews descriptive data for the 54 crime laboratories.

The convention in crime laboratories is to refer to chemists as examiners. This number does not include laboratory technicians, administrators, or clerical staff.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Two crime laboratories report staff sizes of 83 and 125. These are state consolidated laboratories that include data for regional (or "satellite") laboratories. Few laboratories employ more than 25 fulltime analysts.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See Appendix D for summary data on 66 crime laboratories that provided any information for calendar year 1988.

	TABL	Е1		
CHAR	ACTERISTICS OF C	RIME LABO	DRATORII	ES
Crime	Laboratory Type	Number		Percen
	State Local Federal Private	41 11 1 1		76% 20 2 2
	TOTAL	54		100
 Full-T Exami	ime Equivalent ners	Number	Average	Range
Drug All E	Examiners xaminers	195 586	4 13	1- 33 1-125
Excludes m	issing data from !	5 (9%) crim	e labora	tories.
Ratio to All	of Drug Examiners Examiners	Number	, <sup>1</sup>	Percen
	e Half or More	14		32%
On Le	ss Than One Half	30		00

#### CRIME LABORATORY CASELOADS AND EXPENDITURES

Crime laboratories reporting to the Consortium received an estimated 273,739 requests for analysis of suspected controlled substances in calendar year 1988.<sup>7</sup> Over half of requests for analysis (54%) were made by municipal law enforcement agencies, and 21% were made by state agencies.

While most crime laboratories are state-operated, the majority of them (65% or more) work in the service of local law enforcement agencies. Table 2 shows the number of requests for analysis received by the type of agency making the request.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> The states reported 21,768 requests for which the requesting agency was not specified, raising the total to 295,507. Additionally, the Virginia crime laboratory was unable to provide this information. Estimating that the 92,473 analyses completed by Virginia in 1988 resulted from approximately 73,978 requests (on average, each request results in 1.25 analyses), this total can be estimated at approximately 369,485 requests for analysis in 1988.

	TAB	LE 2
	REQUESTS FOI TYPE OF AGENCY	R ANALYSIS BY ( REQUESTING(*)
TYPE	OF AGENCY	NUMBER PERCENT(**)
Mun Sta Tas Cou Fed Oth Non	icipa] te k Force nty era] er Crim. Jus. -Crim. Jus.	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$
TOT	AL	273,739 100
(*) (**)	Table based o laboratories. Percentage do due to roundi	n data from 43 crime es not add up to 100% ng.

Requests for analysis from municipal agencies account for 54% of all requests, and county agencies account for an additional 11%. Consortium representatives indicate that many task forces submit requests through participating local agencies, thus task force requests may be undercounted. Requests from federal agencies are not expected to be high, since the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) operates its own regional laboratory system. Figure 1 below summarizes requests for analysis by type of requesting agency.



#### Trends in Requests for Analysis

Table 3 compares the quarterly median number of requests for analysis by municipal, State, and county law enforcement agencies.<sup>8</sup> This information shows a rise from the first to the last quarter in 1988 in the number of requests for analysis submitted to crime labs by the agencies that account for the greatest percentage of all requests.

	TABLE 3												
COMPARISON OF MEDIAN NUMBER OF REQUESTS FOR ANALYSIS FOR THREE AGENCY TYPES (N= 52)													
AGENCY TYPE	QUARTER 1	QUARTER 4	PERCENT CHANGE										
Municipal State County	304 48 71	360 43 75	+18% -10 + 6										

**Crime Laboratory Expenditures and Equipment Purchases** 

Crime laboratories reporting to the Consortium spent a total of \$17,103,354<sup>9</sup> in calendar year 1988, with an average operating budget of approximately \$150,000. Crime laboratories spent \$2,516,235 in equipment purchases in 1988, nearly all of which (99%) went toward the purchase of laboratory equipment.

The operating budgets of crime laboratories vary greatly--an additional indicator of varying sizes and capacities. The average 1988 operating expenditure is \$150,029, with a range of \$5,000 to \$1,607,174, and a median of \$57,280. Table 4 presents crime laboratory equipment purchases by type of equipment.

TABLE 4											
1988 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES BY CRIME LABORATORIES(*)											
TYPE OF EQUIPMENT	DOLLAR AMOUNT	PERCENT(**)									
Laboratory	\$2,479,307	99%									
Computer	32,517	1									
Office	4,411	<1									
TOTAL	\$2,516,235	100									

<sup>8</sup> The average (mean) of quarterly submissions is not used due to skewedness in its distribution.

This figure is based on the crime laboratories that provide expenditure data (54% of all laboratories).

#### DRUGS IDENTIFIED IN CRIME LABORATORIES

Crime laboratories reporting to the Consortium analyzed 343,798 suspected controlled substances in calendar year 1988. Cannabis accounts for 40% of substances identified and cocaine accounts for 33%. Approximately 9% of analyses completed are for non-controlled substances.

Crime laboratories are a critical juncture in drug enforcement and offender prosecution. They perform almost a singular function in this area--analyzing suspected controlled substances and reporting the results back to the requesting agency.<sup>10</sup>

Crime laboratory policies regarding how to handle incoming requests for analysis are a major factor in explaining crime laboratory workload. The number of analyses completed by a crime laboratory, for example, is a valuable workload indicator, though caution must be exercised in interpreting these data for the following reasons:

- Crime laboratory workload varies by resource constraints. In times of high demand for drug analyses, a laboratory might adjust priorities and only examine samples for cases going to court, versus examining all requests on a first-come/first-served basis.
- Different requests for analysis entail different work demands, and analysis protocols vary across crime laboratories. For example, depending on crime laboratory policies and specific instructions accompanying a request for analysis, a cocaine analysis can take from 15 minutes to an hour or more. Workload demands on crime laboratories, then, are not a simple function of the number of requests for analysis. Case-by-case data on work units by requested analysis must be collected to determine workload demands of drug cases.<sup>11</sup>

Table 5 (Figure 2 on the following page) presents data for analyses completed by crime laboratories in 1988.

1988 DRUG ANALYSES COMPLETED BY CRIME LABORATORIES(*)											
	DRUG TYPE	NUMBER	PERCENT(**)								
	Cannabis	135.938	40%								
	Cocaine	114.475	33								
	Stimulants	16.634	5								
	Opiates	20.494	6								
	Hallucinogens	11.755	3 -								
	Depressants	5.319	2								
	Inconclusive	510	<1								
	Other	9.256	3								
	Non-Controlled	29,417	9								
	TOTAL	343,798	100								

ģ

In reality, crime laboratories perform other important functions, such as testifying in court and performing many other types of analyses that may or may not be related to drug crimes (blood sample analysis, tracking pill manufacturers, disrupting clandestine laboratories, ballistics, and a range of other activities).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See Appendix B for a discussion of workload policies and priorities.



#### Turnaround Time for Analyses Completed

Crime laboratories use average turnaround time as another means of monitoring and assessing workload. Turnaround time is normally calculated as the average number of days from receipt of a request for analysis to completion of the analysis and reporting of results.<sup>12</sup> With 87% of the crime laboratories reporting turnaround time information, the average turnaround time for crime laboratories (across all four quarters in 1988) ranged from 1 to 99.9 days, with a median of 10.5 days.<sup>13</sup>

#### Trends in Analyses Completed and Turnaround Time

The median turnaround time for completion of analysis for all crime laboratories increased from 10.8 days in the first quarter of 1988 to 12.0 in the fourth quarter (an 11% increase). The median number of analyses completed went from 693 in the first quarter to 821 in the fourth quarter (an 18% increase). Although this is preliminary information, average turnaround time statistics will be monitored over time to determine whether these early trends continue.

#### STATE-BY-STATE COMPARISONS

Tables 6 to 8 (and Figure 3) present state-by-state comparisons for requests for analysis, analyses completed, turnaround time, and other variables.<sup>14</sup> It is important to consider crime laboratory data at this level of detail since there are significant variations in their definition and calculation.

<sup>14</sup> These tables present data for crime laboratories reporting data for four quarters in 1988.

 $<sup>^{12}</sup>$  See Appendix B for a discussion of turnaround time calculation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Each quarter, the states submit an average turnaround time statistic for drug analyses. The average turnaround time reported here refers to the average across four reporting quarters in 1988. Thus, the range and median reported are based on 212 cases (53 crime laboratories for four quarters), and the median is a median for average turnaround times.

Seventy five percent (75%) of requests for analysis in New Jersey originate from municipal agencies, while 28% of requests come from municipal agencies in South Dakota. Most states receive the majority of requests for analysis from State, local, or county agencies. Michigan and Texas, however, report the greatest percentages of requests from task forces, but not all states are able to identify requests for analysis that originate from task forces. It should not be interpreted that task forces in these two states generate more requests for analysis. The capability to identify task force requests will provide a more accurate picture of the laboratory workload generated by task force activity.

The number of analyses completed reveals the variation in the workload for crime laboratories across states, and in the nature of the drug problem (Table 7). Crime laboratories that perform higher percentages of cocaine analyses tend to perform an inversely proportionate percentage of marijuana analyses. The differences exhibited in cocaine and cannabis analyses may be influenced by the narcotics' availability or "targeting" policies. Recalling that the tests for these two substances are different and require different expenditures of staff resources, these observed differences provide valuable information for decisionmakers considering crime laboratory enhancements.

Turnaround time varies across the states (Table 8). Michigan reports a range in turnaround time from 1.8 to 22.5 days; Ohio reports a range from 1.5 to 61 4 days; and Texas reports a range from 6.3 to 99.5 days. These ranges reflect great variation in the calculation of turnaround time statistics across individual laboratories, rather than great variation in the responsiveness of crime laboratories to requests for analysis.



TABLE 6

`a. '`;

## 1988 REQUESTS FOR ANALYSIS BY STATE AND REQUESTING AGENCY TYPE

State	Lab Number	Munic. Law Agencies	Enf. %	State Law Agencies	Enf. %	Task Forces	%	unty Law Er Agencies	if. Fee %	leral Law E Agencies	nf. %	Other Law E Agencies	nf. %	Non CJ Agencies	%	From All Agencies
IN(*)	1 2 3 4 5	252 2,149 1,501 945 1,300	36.4 62.8 53.7 47.4 38.3	0 426 489 579 1,418	0.0 12.5 17.5 29.0 41.8	407 0 0 0 0	58.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	31 779 747 362 524	4.5 22.8 26.7 18.1 15.5	0 0 0 0 0	$\begin{array}{c} 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\end{array}$	3 66 57 109 148	0.4 1.9 2.0 5.5 4.4	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	693 3,420 2,794 1,995 3,390
MI	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	1,371 2,078 2,646 1,287 870 65 128	45.9 60.9 65.8 48.8 36.6 20.9 16.8	568 300 135 321 248 134 128	19.0 8.8 3.4 12.2 10.4 43.1 16.8	647 794 1,126 748 570 71 181	21.6 23.3 28.0 28.4 23.9 22.8 23.8	366 209 82 235 644 27 268	12.2 6.1 2.0 8.9 27.1 8.7 35.3	9 23 30 8 3 2 2	0.3 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.3	29 8 1 37 45 4 53	1.0 0.2 0.0 1.4 1.9 1.3 7.0	0 0 0 0 8 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0	2,990 3,412 4,020 2,636 2,380 311 760
NJ	1 2 3 4 5	42,394 2,899 1 7,099 1,676 1,166	72.2 00.0 87.9 75.8 53.7	16,318 0 0 0 0	27.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 317 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0	0 0 944 47 130	0.0 0.0 11.7 2.1 6.0	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 31 172 876	0.0 0.0 0.4 7.8 40.3	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	58,712 2,899 8,074 2,212 2,172
ОН	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	43 406 4,988 3,590 329 4,075 0 0	45.3 59.7 99.4 89.0 36.4 86.8 0.0 0.0	1 0 6 0 19 0 2,252	1.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.4 0.0 100.0	32 0 162 412 52 0 0	33.7 0.0 4.0 45.6 1.1 0.0 0.0	19 268 28 151 158 476 0 0	20.0 39.4 0.6 3.7 17.5 10.1 0.0 0.0	0 0 38 0 10 0	0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0	0 0 86 5 58 0 0	0.0 0.0 2.1 0.6 1.2 0.0 0.0	0 5 0 0 7 0 0	0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0	95 680 5,016 4,033 904 4,697 0 2,252
SD	1 2 3	74 315 186	23.6 26.6 33.0	32 419 24	10.2 35.4 4.3	174 80 336	55.6 6.8 59.6	15 342 14	4.8 28.9 2.5	18 9 0	5.8 0.8 0.0	0 14 4	0.0 1.2 0.7	0 5 0	0.0 0.4 0.0	313 1,184 564
TX	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	2,564 3,133 3,007 11,377 3,036 4,394 10,811 683 4,869 3,773 4,869	42.4 42.0 12.9 53.3 35.1 54.7 48.5 40.7 41.8 54.7 34.0	1,509 1,621 452 6,006 2,556 1,725 6,410 387 3,029 2,259 5,601	25.0 21.8 1.9 28.1 29.5 21.5 28.8 23.1 26.0 32.8 39.1	1,431 786 18,897 628 1,080 403 2,033 387 1,794 133 583	23.7 10.5 81.1 2.9 12.5 5.0 9.1 23.1 15.4 1.9 4.1	462 1,803 907 3,311 1,870 1,437 2,909 218 1,912 715 3,081	7.6 24.2 3.9 15.5 21.6 17.9 13.1 13.0 16.4 10.4 21.5	0 78 16 0 103 27 104 1 0 2 71	0.0 1.0 0.1 0.0 1.2 0.3 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.4	82 30 9 14 10 50 8 1 48 10 135	1.4 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.6 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.9		0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	6,048 7,451 23,288 21,336 8,655 8,036 22,275 1,677 11,652 6,892 14,340

Continued on following page.

## TABLE 6 (cont'd)

1

## 1988 REQUESTS FOR ANALYSIS BY STATE AND REQUESTING AGENCY TYPE

State	Lab Number	Munic. Law Agencies	Enf. State % Age	e Law Enf. encies %	Task Forces	%	County Law Agenc	v Enf. :ies %	Federal Law I Agencies	Enf. %	Other Law I Agencies	Enf. %	Non CJ Agencies	%	From All Agencies
ហ	······································	1,216 28	3.0 74	9 17.2	1,420	32.7	870	20.0	30	0.7	60	1.4	3	0.1	4,348
WA	1	4,392 73	3.5 25	6 4.3	0	0.0	1,289	21.6	13	0.2	0	0.0	26	0.4	5,976
	3	1,339 63	1.0   0.0	7 8.9	0	0.0	354	16.8	35	1.7	4	0.2	186	8.8	2,105
	- 5 6	393 35	5.2  15	8 14.2 1 12 0	0	- 0.0	560	50.2	4	0.4	0	0.0	0	0.0	1,115
(*)	Excludes	data from on	e Indiana	crime labor	atory that	provida	es analyses	s data in	n an incompat	ible 1	Format.				
		<del></del>		<u></u>	3 <sup>77</sup>						-	¥	<u></u>		
				 -											

			•							TABL	E 7									
						TOTAL N	UMBER	OF ANALY	SES CO	OMPLETEI	BY S	FATE AND	SUBS	TANCE ID	ENTIFII	ED				
L	ab #	Cann. Anal. Comp.	%	Coc. Anal. Comp.	%	Stim. Anal. Comp.	%	Opiates. Anal. Comp.	%	Halluc. Anal. Comp.	%	Dep. Anal. Comp.	%	Inconcl. Subs. Comp.	%	Other Anal. Comp.	%	Non-cont. Anal. Comp.	%	Total
IN(*)	1 2 3 4	395 1,229 1,461 1,000	57.0 49.0 57.0 46.4	98 643 482 275	14.1 25.6 18.8 12.8	5 249 219 273	0.7 9.9 8.5 12.7	6 105 27 42	0.9 4.2 1.1 1.9	22 37 51 14	3.2 1.5 2.0 0.6	18 58 132 103	2.6 2.3 5.1 4.8	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	5 34 46 217	0.7 1.4 1.8 10.1	144 154 147 230	20.8 6.1 5.7 10.7	693 2,509 2,565 2,154
MI	5 1 2 3	2,135 1,585 1,227 1,345	60.0 46.4 33.0 30.5	437 1,279 1,965 2,321	12.3 37.4 52.9 52.7	242 0 0	6.8 0.0 0.0 0.0	67 89 120 242	1.9 2.6 3.2 5.5	51 50 55 49	1.4 1.5 1.5 1.1	48 51 75	4.8 1.4 1.4 1.7	0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0	125 19 11 9	3.5 0.6 0.3 0.2	332 348 287 365	9.3 10.2 7.7 8.3	3,560 3,418 3,716 4,406
N.T	4 5 6 7	1,175 1,190 220 628	39.2 44.3 66.3 65.8	1,392 931 37 134	46.4 34.6 11.1 14.0	0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	67 50 6 18	2.2 1.9 1.8 1.9	55 56 9 15	1.8 2.1 2.7 1.6	53 75 6 7	1.8 2.8 1.8 0.7	0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	14 60 0 3	0.5 2.2 0.0 0.3	241 327 54 149	8.0 12.2 16.3 15.6	2,997 2,689 332 954
	1 2 3 4 5	25,065 806 1,995 551 673	32.0 24.6 24.7 27.9 56.3	33,893 1,683 4,301 1,116 359	43.4 51.4 53.3 56.4 30.0	1,440 73 200 6 20	1.8 2.2 2.5 0.3 1.7	6,688 398 492 146 13	8.5 12.1 6.1 7.4 1.1	1,443 87 8 35 4	1.8 2.7 0.1 1.8 0.3	1,630 185 124 43 7	2.1 5.6 1.5 2.2 0.6	0 11 0 23 0	0.0 0.3 0.0 1.2 0.0	1,380 0 18 2 82	1.7 0.0 0.2 0.1 6.9	6,539 33 936 55 38	8.4 1.0 11.6 2.8 3.2	78,078 3,276 8,074 1,977 1,196
ОН	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	166 206 1,483 2,144 435 1,233 1,888 1,432	46.1 30.5 30.2 51.7 47.9 27.7 28.2 64.0	88 243 2,659 891 268 1,833 2,108 253	24.4 35.9 54.1 21.5 29.5 41.2 31.5 11.3	3 31 44 211 7 64 1,129 73	0.8 4.6 0.9 5.1 0.8 1.4 16.9 3.3	0 0 182 216 1 116 45 42	0.0 0.0 3.7 5.2 0.1 2.6 0.7 1.9	0 14 129 222 41 47 176 11	0.0 2.1 2.6 5.4 4.5 1.1 2.6 0.5	46 11 8 168 37 390 225 117	12.8 1.6 0.2 4.1 4.1 8.8 3.4 5.2	4 98 0 0 0 0 0 0	1.1 14.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 9 25 39 2 101 30 28	0.0 1.3 0.5 0.9 0.2 2.3 0.4 1.3	53 64 387 253 117 660 1,092 281	14.7 9.5 7.9 6.1 12.9 14.9 16.3 12.6	360 676 4,917 4,144 908 4,444 6,693 2,237
PA	1 2 3 4 5 6	692 603 523 1,217 752 436	24.6 24.6 43.9 35.5 41.4 44.5	1,341 1,122 381 1,326 625 258	47.7 45.9 32.0 38.7 34.4 26.3	321 291 125 257 146 163	11.4 11.9 10.5 7.5 8.0 16.6	70 213 29 159 81 6	2.5 8.7 2.4 4.6 4.5 0.6	185 17 16 47 30 17	6.6 0.7 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.7	41 56 27 34 54 28	1.5 2.3 2.3 1.0 3.0 2.9	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	123 117 71 185 82 49	4.4 4.8 6.0 5.4 4.5 5.0	37 28 19 199 45 23	1.3 1.1 1.6 5.8 2.5 2.3	2,810 2,447 1,191 3,424 1,815 980

Continued on following page.

			· · ·							TABL	E 7 (cont'o	i)						-		
						TOTA	L NUMB	ER OF AN	ALYSES	COMPLI	eted by s	STATE A	ND SUB	STANCE ID	ENTIFII	ED				
	Lab #	Cann. Anal. Comp.	%	Coc Anal Con	1p. %	Stin Ana Con	1. L 19. %	Opia Ana Com	ites L p. %	Hall Ana Cor	luc. d. np. %	Dep Ana Con	I. 1p. %	Inconcl. Subs. Comp.	%	Other Anal. Comp.	%	Non-cont. Anal. Comp.	%	Total
SD	1 2 3	114 693 53	36.5 58.7 20.9	55 118 79	17.6 10.0 31.2	93 89 14	29.8 7.5 5.5	2 3 1	0.6 0.3 0.4	5 11 11	1.6 0.9 4.3	3 14 3	1.0 1.2 1.2	2 0 0	0.6 0.0 0.0	0 1 2	0.0 0.1 0.8	38 252 90	12.2 21.3 35.6	312 1,181 253
Τx	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	1,446 1,229 1,234 1,511 2,680 3,069 2,258 5,540 604 4,582 4,071 2,646	37.9 47.7 31.7 48.0 28.8 44.6 51.1 58.2 34.7 51.4 60.0 52.1	559 591 1,554 772 2,184 2,642 1,118 3,224 542 2,253 1,010 886	14.7 23.0 40.0 24.5 23.5 38.4 25.3 33.9 31.1 25.3 14.9 17.5	1,104 213 244 27 2,600 273 340 54 190 1,140 1,079 899	29.0 8.3 6.3 0.9 27.9 4.0 7.7 0.6 10.9 12.8 15.9 17.7	129 166 478 555 296 69 156 190 161 59 24 113	3.4 6.4 12.3 17.6 3.2 1.0 3.5 2.0 9.2 0.7 0.4 2.2	24 101 63 9 157 132 166 5 3 16 21 59	0.6 3.9 1.6 0.3 1.7 1.9 3.8 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.2	5 16 0 16 6 2 1 2 20 5 16	0.1 0.6 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.3	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	211 68 77 97 508 195 96 314 73 253 173 217	5.5 2.6 2.0 3.1 5.5 2.8 2.2 3.3 4.2 2.8 2.6 4.3	333 190 239 174 867 488 279 189 166 586 399 240	8.7 7.4 6.1 5.5 9.3 7.1 6.3 2.0 9.5 6.6 5.9 4.7	3,811 2,574 3,889 3,145 9,308 6,874 4,415 9,517 1,741 8,909 6,782 5,076
υT	1	2,845	44.4	1,592	24.9	577	9.0	268	4.2	156	2.4	166	2.6	372	5.8	8	0.1	417	6.5	6,401
VA	1	41,502	44.9	21,984	23.8	662	0.7	6,547	7.1	7,559	8.2	767	0.8	0	0.0	4,016	4.4	9,280	10.0	92,317
WA	1 2 3 4 5 6	1,571 1,533 225 114 240 288	21.5 45.2 10.8 11.5 16.6 11.9	3,722 1,167 1,082 599 488 1,512	50.9 34.4 51.9 60.3 33.8 62.3	390 228 186 56 428 156	5.3 6.7 8.9 5.6 29.6 6.4	856 131 242 42 40 230	11.7 3.9 11.6 4.2 2.8 9.5	71 76 27 35 29 26	1.0 2.2 1.3 3.5 2.0 1.1	78 58 49 16 20 28	1.1 1.7 2.4 1.6 1.4 1.2	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 12 0 32 17	0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 2.2 0.7	621 201 262 131 168 170	8.5 5.9 12.6 13.2 11.6 7.0	7,309 3,394 2,085 993 1,445 2,427
No	ce: Car Nor	The nn. = Canr n-cont. =	follow nabis Non-co	ving abbrev Coc. = ( untrolled.	viates ha Cocaíne	ave been Stim. =	used fo = Stimul	r column ant Hal	heading luc. =	gs: Hallucin	logens D	lep. = 0	lepressa	int Incon	c]. = I	conclusiv	e			

Serie -

	State	Lab Number	Total Number Of Analyses Completed	Average Number Of Drug Analysts*	Average Turnaround Time**	Ratio Drug Exam. Vs. Total # Examiners***	Average Number of Analyses Per Examiner****
	IN****	* 1 2 3 4 5	693 2,509 2,565 2,154 3,560	1.0 2.3 2.0 2.0 2.1	14.1 27.0 22.5 12.0 19.5	1.0	173.3 280.3 320.6 269.3 419.9
	MI	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	3,418 3,716 4,406 2,997 2,689 332 954	3.8 5.5 3.8 3.3 1.0 2.0	9.0 2.7 2.5 1.8 11.1 22.5 5.0	.1 .2 .2 .1 .1 .2	231.3 164.1 206.0 201.7 210.7 83.0 119.3
	NJ	1 2 3 4 5	78,078 3,276 8,074 1,977 1,196	36.3 2.3 0.0 2.8 -	22.5 90.0 8.5 37.5 10.0	.5 .9 .0 .7	537.7 546.1 184.2
	ОН	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	360 676 4,917 4,144 908 4,444 6,693 2,237	1.0 1.5 5.5 2.5 1.0 2.5 7.0 2.0	15.0 7.3 1.5 14.0 1.4 10.2 30.0 4.0	.9 .3 .5 .2 .3 .2 1.0 .5	90.0 112.7 225.2 414.4 227.0 444.4 239.0 279.6
	PA	1 2 3 4 5 6	2,810 2,447 1,191 3,424 1,851 980	4.9 4.8 2.4 5.8 3.4 2.0	28.1 31.2 21.4 28.8 3.8 11.2	.7 .6 .5 .6 .5 .5	144.3 131.0 125.4 145.6 134.4 124.9
. :	SD	1 2 3	312 1,181 253	1.1 2.0	1.6 4.0 3.0	1.0	75.3 149.0 -
	ΤX	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	3,881 2,574 3,889 3,145 9,308 6,874 4,415 9,517 1,741 8,909 6,782 5,076	2.0 1.0 2.0 5.3 3.0 2.0 2.8 2.0 3.8 3.0 2.8	11.5 8.3 4.5 4.0 10.0 40.0 21.8 6.3 15.0 26.8 99.5 12.8	1.0 1.0 .5 1.0 .8 .4 .4 .7 1.0 .8 .5 .2	476.4 643.5 486.1 393.1 449.6 572.8 551.9 885.2 217.6 609.3 565.2 478.0

TABLE 8

Continued on the following page.

				TABLE 8 (co	nt'd)			
		STAFF AN	D WORKLOAD	INDICATORS	BY STATE AN	D LABO	RATOR	XY
	State	Lab Number	Total Number Of Analyses Completed	Average Number Of Drug Analysts*	Average Turnaround Tíme**	Ratio Drug Ex Vs. Tota Examin	kam. al # ners***	Average Number of Analyses Per Examiner**
	UT	1	6,401	2.8	6.5	.4		591,5
	VA	1	92,473	24.8	· · ·	.2		940.7
	WA	1 2 3 4 5 6	7,309 3,394 2,085 993 1,445 2,427	8.0 2.0 1.5 1.0 1.0 2.0	27.1 6.0 40.2 45.0 9.0 10.7	.4 .3 .4 .4 .5 .6		228.4 424.3 353.8 248.3 361.3 303.4
"_" * ** *** ****		Data n Repres averag Repres over f Repres total Repres number averag Exclud in an	ot provided. ents the numb ed over four ents the aver our quarters. ents the rati analysts in a ents the tota of full-time ed over four es data from incompatible	er of drug ar quarters. age turnarour o of the numk laboratory, l number of ar e equivalent quarters. one Indiana c format	nalysts at the nd time for ea per of full ti averaged over nalyses comple drug analyst crime laborato	e close o me equiv r four q eted in a s at th ory that	of a re rting valent uarter quart ne clo provid	eporting quarte quarter, averag drug analysts s. er divided by t se of a quarte des analyses da

#### Summary

Crime laboratories in the Consortium states are primarily (76%) state-operated and perform the drug analysis function for State, county, local, and Federal agencies. Indicators of crime laboratory activity (requests for analysis, analyses completed, and turnaround time) show that requests for analysis from municipal law enforcement agencies increased 18% between the first and fourth quarters of 1988 (from a median of 304 to 360). The median turnaround time also increased 11% during 1988. Analyses completed (median) increased 18% during calendar year 1988 (from 693 to 821 for all laboratories). Nearly all of the Federal financial assistance funds provided to crime laboratories went toward equipment purchases to help crime laboratories keep pace with the increasing demand for drug analyses.

The drugs identified by crime laboratories reveal law enforcement and prosecutorial priorities, and also indicate the availability of certain controlled substances. Among the laboratories reporting data, cannabis (40%) and cocaine (33%) identifications dominate the analysis results.

Table 9 presents a comparison of cocaine and cannabis analysis results for New Jersey, Texas, Virginia, and Washington.

	TABLE 9	
COMPARISON OF CANNA	BIS AND COCAINE AN N VARIOUS STATES	ALYSES COMPLETED
STATE	PERCENT OF ANAI Cocaine	LYSES COMPLETED Cannabis
New Jersey	45	31
Texas	26	47
Virginia	24	45
the second second	10	22

There are a variety of explanations for the differences observed in substances identified across different states. Drug enforcement priorities differ among the states, as does drug availability. Crime laboratories may use different policies regarding analysis priorities.

#### SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Crime laboratory enhancement programs are an important component of State drug control strategies, since suspected controlled substances must be identified in preparation for prosecution. The Consortium states targeted these programs and began collecting data on crime laboratories in 1988. This report presents a broad description of crime laboratories; focusing on different indicators of drug-related workload and operations. The data are preliminary, representing the first year of activity for most enhancement programs. Description must precede analysis, and the data presented in this report allow drug policy analysts to take an important first step in learning about crime laboratories. Data analysis will continue as drug control strategies mature. Future Consortium work will address impact and evaluation issues.

Marijuana and cocaine verifications dominate crime laboratory analysis activities. Crime laboratory workload indicators (median number of requests for analysis by municipal law enforcement agencies, median number of analyses completed, and average turnaround time) show increases from the first to the fourth quarter of 1988. This information confirms the expected rise in demand for work from crime laboratories. Monitoring these indicators in the future will help explain how well the laboratories manage the demands placed on them, and will help policymakers decide where to commit their drug control resources. Crime laboratory statistics reveal variation across the states and across individual laboratories in their workloads, operating procedures, and types of controlled substances identified. These observations illustrate the need for more detailed examination of crime laboratory statistics, and for not treating crime laboratories as a homogeneous component in state drug control strategies.

#### Using Consortium Information to Assess and Evaluate Drug Control Strategies

Descriptive data on crime laboratories alone do not provide sufficient information to conduct impact assessments or policy evaluations. In the future, the Consortium will collect a wide range of drug strategy and impact-related data from crime laboratories. In addition, the Consortium will collect data on drug treatment and drug testing initiatives, multi-jurisdictional cooperative law enforcement task forces, and drug offender processing. When data become available for analysis in these and other areas, and when drug control strategies are in place for a few more years, the Consortium and the states will be able to move forward in assessing the impact of drug control strategies.

This report provides, for the first time, empirical descriptions of crime laboratories are presented from states that received Federal drug control funds. New information is presented about the volume of drug analyses, and the nature and extent of crime laboratory workloads. Policymakers in the states and the Federal government now have data that helps them make decisions. Analysts now have comparable data on a variety of indicators relating to drug control initiatives. These are among the first products of the Consortium project. Future reports will address other components of drug control strategies, and will compare, among other issues, the 1988 crime laboratory data to 1989 data.

## APPENDIX A

ف

The Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment

#### The Consortium Project

The Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment was created in 1987 as a cooperative agreement between the Criminal Justice Statistics Association (CJSA) and the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) to develop comparable data across the states and to assess the impact of drug control strategies. It began as a 15-state effort and expanded to include 28 states in 1989.

The Consortium project is guided by three goals:

- Develop and collect comparable data across states to monitor the implementation of drug control strategies and to assess their impact.
- Build capacities at the state and local levels to collect and analyze data pertaining to drug control strategy assessment.
- Provide policymakers at the Federal, State, and local levels with feedback on the effectiveness of drug control strategies.

The Consortium is a State/Federal research partnership, in which the member states meet frequently with BJA and national experts in drug control programs and research to set project goals, research priorities, and data collection conventions. Based on these deliberations, the Consortium establishes priorities for data collection and analysis, and CJSA provides "pass through" funds to the states for data development. Data are submitted regularly (usually quarterly) to CJSA for reporting and analysis, and the results are provided to BJA, decision makers, the states, and the public.

Early on in its deliberations, the Consortium adopted a blueprint for data collection, with the understanding that a developmental process would occur. As the project progresses, different components of the data collection and analyses are undertaken. The blueprint calls for data collection in three principal areas--law enforcement activities, drug offender characteristics and processing, and community.<sup>15</sup> These are depicted in Figure 4.

In this context, community refers to the organizational and social environments within which drug law enforcement strategies are implemented.

	FIGURE 4	
Cor	sortium Blueprint for Data C	ollection
Law Enforcement <u>Activities</u>	Drug Offenders	<u>Community</u>
Criminal Justice Processing	Offender Profiles	Drug Use/Abuse Quality of Life
Arrests Dispositions Convictions	Demographics Criminal History Drug Testing	School Surveys Household Surveys Victim Surveys
Other Criminal	Offender Surveys	Treatment Resources
ties	Recidivism Studies	Treatment Follow-up
Drug Removal Asset Seizure &	Response to Treat- ment	Education and Pre- vention Activities
Crime Lab Analyses	Offender Tracking	
Law Enforcement Resources		
Law Enforcement Surveys		

The Consortium focused on data collection for law enforcement activities and community/environment<sup>16</sup> issues in its first year of operation, and expanded its priorities to cover drug offender processing and additional law enforcement and community issues during its second year.

Since its inception, 15 states have been providing quarterly data to CJSA on multi-jurisdictional cooperative law enforcement task forces and crime laboratory enhancement programs. A subset of those 15 states has been providing quarterly drug conviction and sentencing data at the county level for a separate analysis effort; six states have provided data to CJSA from statewide surveys on drug control and use. The thirteen states that joined the Consortium project in 1989 will be providing data on treatment programs, drug testing programs, and drug offender processing. Figure 5 shows the states participating in the Consortium according to the type of data they provide.

<sup>6</sup> In this context, community refers to the organizational and social environments within which drug law enforcement strategies are implemented.

## FIGURE 5

States Participating in the Consortium Project

STATE         Task Force         Crime Lab         Drug County         Drug Survey         Testing         Treatment           Alaska Arizona*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Arizona*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Delaware         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           District of         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Indiana*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Indiana*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Indiana*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Massachusetts*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           Merbaska         0         0         0         0         0         0         0           New Jersey*         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0 <t< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>PRIOR</th><th>III AREA</th><th></th><th></th></t<>					PRIOR	III AREA		
Alaska       0       0       0       0       0         Arizona*       0       0       0       0       0         Connecticut*       0       0       0       0       0         Delaware       0       0       0       0       0         District of       0       0       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0       0       0         Iowa       0       0       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0       0         Michigan*       0       0       0       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota* <th>STATE</th> <th>Task Force</th> <th>Crime Lab</th> <th>County</th> <th>Survey</th> <th>Drug Offender</th> <th>Testing</th> <th>Treatment</th>	STATE	Task Force	Crime Lab	County	Survey	Drug Offender	Testing	Treatment
Arizona*       0       0       0       0       0         Connecticut*       0       0       0       0         Delaware       0       0       0       0         District of       0       0       0       0         Columbia*       0       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0       0         Iowa       0       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0       0         South	Alaska					0		
Connecticut*       o       o       o         Delaware       o       o       o         District of       c       o       o         Columbia*       o       o       o         Indiana*       o       o       o         Massachusetts*       o       o       o         Michigan*       o       o       o         Montana*       o       o       o         New Jersey*       o       o       o         New Jersey*       o       o       o         North Carolina       o       o       o         North Dakota       o       o       o         Ohio*       o       o       o       o         South Carolina       o       o       o       o         South Dakota*       o       o       o <td>Arizona*</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>o</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td>	Arizona*	0	0	0	o	0	0	
Delaware       0       0       0         District of       0       0       0         Columbia*       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0	Connecticut*	0	0	0				
District of       Columbia*       0       0       0       0         Florida       0       0       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0       0       0         Iawa       0       0       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0       0         Michigan*       0       0       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0       0       0	Delaware		0			0		
Columbia*       0       0       0       0         Florida       0       0       0       0         Indiana*       0       0       0       0         Iowa       0       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0         Michigan*       0       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0       0         Nemsota       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0	District of							
Florida       0       0         Indiana*       0       0         Iowa       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0         Michigan*       0       0         Minnesota       0       0         Montana*       0       0         Nebraska       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0         North Carolina       0       0         North Dakota       0       0         Ohio*       0       0         Oregon       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0	Columbia*	0	0	0	0	0		
Indiana*       0       0       0       0         Iowa       0       0       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0         Yirginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0       0	Florida		0			0		
Iowa       0       0         Massachusetts*       0       0       0         Michigan*       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0         Yama*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Wasconsin       0       0	Indiana*	0	0					0
Massachusetts*       0       0       0       0         Michigan*       0       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0       0	Iowa					0		
Michigan*       0       0       0         Minnesota       0       0         Montana*       0       0         Nebraska       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0	Massachusetts*	o	0		o		o	
Minnesota       0       0       0         Montana*       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0         Yirginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0	Michigan*	о	0	0				
Montana*       0       0       0         Nebraska       0       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0         Yirginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0       0	Minnesota	0				0		
Nebraska       0       0         New Jersey*       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0         Ohio*       0       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0         Yirginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0       0	Montana*	o	Q	0				
New Jersey*       0       0       0       0         New York       0       0       0       0         North Carolina       0       0       0       0         North Dakota       0       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0         Yirginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0	Nebraska					0		
New York         o         o           North Carolina         o         o           North Dakota         o         o           North Dakota         o         o           Ohio*         o         o           Oklahoma         o         o           Oregon         o         o           Pennsylvania*         o         o           South Carolina         o         o           South Dakota*         o         o           Yexas*         o         o         o           Viania*         o         o         o           Visconsin         o         o         o	New Jersey*	O.	0	0				0
North CarolinaooNorth DakotaooOhio*ooOklahomaooOregonooOregonooPennsylvania*ooSouth CarolinaooSouth Dakota*ooTexas*oooooVirginia*oovoltah*oovoltah*oovirginia*oovisconsinoo	New York					0	O	
North Dakota         0         1 <th1< th="">         1         <th1< th=""> <th1< td=""><td>North Carolina</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td></td></th1<></th1<></th1<>	North Carolina	0					0	
Ohio*       0       0       0         Oklahoma       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0       0         Texas*       0       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0       0	North Dakota							0
Oklahoma       0       0       0         Oregon       0       0       0         Pennsylvania*       0       0       0         South Carolina       0       0       0         South Dakota*       0       0       0         Texas*       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0	Ohio*	0	0		o			
Oregon         0 <td>0k1ahoma</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td>	0k1ahoma					0	0	
Pennsylvania*DDOOSouth CarolinaOOSouth Dakota*OOTexas*OOOUtah*OOOVirginia*OOVashington*OOVisconsinOO	Oregon							0
South Carolina         o	Pennsylvania*	D	D I	o		0		
South Dakota*       0       0       0         Texas*       0       0       0       0       0         Utah*       0       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0         Wisconsin       0       0       0       0	South Carolina							• 0
Texas*       0       0       0       0       0       0         Utah*       0       0       0       0       0       0         Virginia*       0       0       0       0       0       0         Washington*       0       0       0       0       0       0	South Dakota*	· 0	Ö	0				
Utah* o o o o Virginia* o o o Washington* o o o Wisconsin o o o	Texas*	ō	0	0	. 0	° 0	o	0
Virginia* o o o Washington* o o o Wisconsin o O	Utah*	0	0	ō	ō		-	
Washington* o o o Wisconsin o O	Virginia*	Ö	0			0		
Wisconsin o o	Washington*	0	0	o				
	Wisconsin	ō		-		0		

## APPENDIX B

State Representatives to the

Consortium for Drug Strategy Impact Assessment

#### ALASKA

Allan Barnes SAC Director Justice Center University of Alaska 3211 Providence Drive Anchorage, AK 99508 (907) 786-1810

#### ARIZONA

Richard Porter Statistical Analyst Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 1700 North Seventh Avenue Suite 250 Phoenix, AZ 85007 (602) 255-1928

#### CONNECTICUT

Dolly Reed Director Office of Policy & Management Justice Planning Division Statistical Analysis Center 80 Washington Street Hartford, CT 06106 (203) 566-3522

#### DELAWARE

John O'Connell Director Statistical Analysis Center 60 The Plaza Dover, DE 19901 (302) 736-4846

#### DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Stephen Rickman Director Statistical Analysis Center Office of Criminal Justice Plans & Analysis 717 14th Street, N.W. Room 500 A Washington, DC 20004 (202) 727-6554

#### FLORIDA

Diane Zahm Director Statistical Analysis Center Florida Department of Law Enforcement Post Office Box 1489 Tallahassee, FL 32302 (904) 487-4808

#### INDIANA

Michael Sabath Director Center for Criminal Justice Research & Information Indiana Criminal Justice Institute 101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1030 Indianapolis, IN 46204 (317) 232-1619

#### IOWA

Richard Moore Administrator Criminal and Juvenile Justice Planning Executive Hills East Des Moines, IA 50319 (515) 242-5816

#### MASSACHUSETTS

William Holmes Director Statistical Analysis Center Massachusetts Committee on Criminal Justice 100 Cambridge Street Room 2100 Boston, MA 02202 (617) 727-0237

i

#### MICHIGAN

Timothy Bynum Professor Michigan State University School of Criminal Justice 560 Baker Hall East Lansing, MI 48824 (517) 355-2196

#### MINNESOTA

Kathryn Guthrie Research Specialist Minnesota State Planning Agency 300 Centennial Office Building 658 Cedar Street St. Paul, MN 55155 (612) 296-7819

#### MONTANA

Al Brockway Management Analyst Planning and Research Bureau Montana Board of Crime Control 303 North Roberts Street Helena, MT 59620 (406) 444-3604

#### **NEBRASKA**

Michael Overton Director Statistical Analysis Center Nebraska Crime Commission 301 Centennial Mall South Post Office Box 94946 Lincoln, NE 68509 (402) 471-2194

#### **NEW JERSEY**

Donald Rebovich Chief, Drug Program Monitoring Unit Research & Evaluation Section Division of Criminal Justice Hughes Justice Complex CN-085 Trenton, NJ 08625 (609) 984-1936

#### NEW YORK

Richard Rosen Bureau Chief New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services Executive Park Tower, 8th Floor Stuyvesant Plaza Albany, NY 12203 (518) 457-8393

#### NORTH CAROLINA

David Jones Director Criminal Justice Analysis Center Governor's Crime Commission Department of Crime Control Post Office Box 27687 Raleigh, NC 27611 (919) 733-5013

#### NORTH DAKOTA

Robert Helten Coordinator Criminal Justice Research Office of the Attorney General State Capitol Eismarck, ND 58505 (701) 221-6180

#### OHIO

Jeffrey Knowles Research Administrator II Office of Criminal Justice Services Ohio Department of Development 65 East State Street Suite 312 Columbus, OH 43216 (614) 466-0310

#### OKLAHOMA

Russell Buchner Associate Director Oklahoma Criminal Justice Resource Center 3400 Martin Luther King Avenue Oklahoma City, OK 73111 (405) 425-2593

#### OREGON

Jim Heuser Director Crime Analysis Center Department of Justice Justice Building Salem, OR 97310 (503) 378-4229

#### PENNSYLVANIA

Craig Edelman Program Analyst Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency Post Office Box 1167 Harrisburg, PA 17108 (717) 787-5152

#### SOUTH CAROLINA

Burke Fitzpatrick Program Administrator Division of Public Safety Programs Edgar A. Brown Building 1205 Pendleton Street Columbia, SC 29201 (803) 734-0423

#### SOUTH DAKOTA

Donald Brekke Program Coordinator South Dakota Attorney General's Task Force on Drugs Office of the Attorney General State Capitol State Capitol, SD 57501 (605) 773-4687

#### TEXAS

Gene Draper Planner Criminal Justice Policy Council Post Office Box 13332 Capitol Station Austin, TX 78711-3332 (512) 463-1810

## UTAH

Richard Oldroyd Director of Research Commission on Criminal & Juvenile Justice 101 State Capitol Salt Lake City, UT 84114 (801) 538-1031

#### VIRGINIA

Richard Kern Director Statistical Analysis Center Department of Criminal Justice Services 805 East Broad Street Richmond, VA 23219 (804) 225-4565

#### WASHINGTON

Trooper Kift Washington State Patrol General Administration Building Mail Stop AX-12 Olympia, WA 98504 (206) 753-4453

#### WISCONSIN

Stephen Grohmann Research Analyst Wisconsin Statistical Analysis Center 30 West Mifflin Street Suite 330 Madison, WI 53703 (608) 266-7185

## APPENDIX C

**Review of Data Limitations** 

A multi-state research effort such as this entails certain analytical limitations based on limitations in the data. Variations in hierarchy rules (conventions for reducing multiple arrest charges to a single arrest charge), offense categories and definitions, and level of detail at which data are collected, influence the accuracy and completeness of Consortium data. These issues are reviewed below.

Two opposing tendencies are at work in this project: (1) the need to collect detailed data in different areas and; (2) the need to broaden definitions so that data from different operations can be combined in a reasonable fashion. The use of broad definitions sometimes masks significant variations in activities at the local level. Still, the data are recognized as valuable indicators of the phenomena under investigation.

#### **Deviations from Data Coding Conventions**

The Consortium collects data from crime laboratories in 14 states. Considerable time is spent by the Consortium states in setting data item definitions, coding standards, and reporting procedures, but 100% compliance is not attainable. Deviations from the procedures result primarily from the inability of members to control data coding at the crime laboratory site. This produces variation in two areas critical to this analysis:

calculation of turnaround time (time from receipt of a request for analysis to completion of

definitions of what constitutes a "sample" in a crime laboratory, and

.

the analysis in a crime laboratory).

#### Crime Laboratory Workload and Turnaround Time:

Crime laboratories vary in how they count incoming caseload (requests for analysis of suspected controlled substances) and in how they count output (completed analyses). A request for analysis may be for one suspected controlled substance (white powder or plant material) or for multiple "samples" (three bags of powder and two vials of capsules). When multiple samples are submitted, some laboratories may count them as a single request for analysis and some may count them as multiple requests. Most laboratories count requests by the number of official requesting documents, which may list one or more suspected controlled substances.

Laboratories and individual analysts within laboratories vary in the number of analyses they conduct for any single request for analysis, depending on the workload demand and the requirements for a particular prosecution. For example, when caseload demands are high, most laboratories will conduct analyses only for cases going to court, rather than processing all requests for analysis. Additionally, analysts usually perform the analysis necessary to produce a conviction and do not necessarily analyze all of the suspected controlled substances submitted to them. These policies vary by laboratory, by chemist, and by workload demand. It is difficult, then, to compare such things as caseloads across laboratories, since different processing conventions may apply.

A similar problem exists regarding turnaround time. Laboratories that process all requests as a standard policy may have a slower turnaround time than laboratories that process only those cases going to court (these are usually completed in a few days). Turnaround time is also affected by personnel, availability of automated equipment, and other resource constraints. Additionally, no convention exists for calculating turnaround time. Generally, it is calculated as the average number of working days from receipt of the request for analysis to completion of the analysis, (the assumption is made that the results are mailed to the requestor within a day or two of completion of the analysis) but not all laboratories follow this convention, and not all were able to calculate this variable. For these reasons, comparisons in our analysis of crime laboratories is limited to state-by-state and laboratoryby-laboratory comparisons for these variables.<sup>17</sup>

Four developments within the Consortium work to minimize these problems:

- Data coding and reporting conventions are discussed and agreed upon by all Consortium members. Thus, even if exact compliance is unattainable, the general guidelines and research questions are understood at the outset. This assists with problem resolution as data collection proceeds.
  - Data definitions and coding conventions are documented and distributed to all Consortium members, so a written record exists for reference.
- CJSA reviews all data submissions. The CJSA data entry software programs contain automatic edit functions for fields with specific data ranges.<sup>18</sup> By these practices, the most obvious data coding problems are detected and quickly resolved.
- CJSA maintains regular communication with Consortium states in the data review and update process. Errors or questions uncovered in the review process are logged, as are any changes made to the active data files.

Quality control is an overriding concern. Resources do not permit development of a comprehensive data quality program that monitors data coding in each of the states. Data coding errors are detected in the normal handling and review of data and as analysis progresses; corrections are made when errors are found.

Two other issues affect data collection and analysis. First, there are delays in data reporting, most often at the local level, that result in a four- to six-month lag from an event to its entry into the Consortium data system. Second, the use of hierarchy rules for case classification is further complicated by an inability to control the hierarchy rules employed at the State or local level.

Consortium data collection conventions allow different levels of reporting from crime laboratories. Descriptive and qualitative data are provided by nearly all laboratories. Some data items or classes are optional, so complete reporting is not expected for them.

States may report crime laboratory data at different levels of detail. For example, a state may provide summary totals of all requests for analysis or requests for analysis by requesting agency type (e.g., local law enforcement, county law enforcement, Federal agency). Similarly, a state may report the total of all analyses completed, or subtotals by type of controlled substance identified (e.g., cocaine, hallucinogens, marijuana, amphetamines).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> The analysis assumes that within state variations are less severe than across state variations on these variables, and that within state aggregation is valid.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Most Consortium states use the CJSA software programs to collect and submit data for the project. Documentation on the Consortium data entry system is available from CJSA.

## APPENDIX D

## Summary Crime Laboratory Data Tables\*

(\*These tables present data for crime laboratories reporting data during any quarter in 1988.)

## TABLE 10

## 1988 REQUESTS FOR ANALYSIS BY STATE AND REQUESTING AGENCY TYPE

	State	·	L: Nun	ab aber	Munic. Agenc	Law Enf ies %	State Agen	Law Enf. cies %	Task Forces	%	County Lav Agencies	w Enf. %	Federal L Agencies	aw En %	f. Other I Agencies	.aw E %	nf. Non ( Agencies	J %	From All Agencies
	AZ			1 2	1,223 158	46.6 31.9	746 250	28.4 50.5	0	0.0 0.0	595 61	22.7 12.3	28 11	1.1 2.2	19 15	0.7 3.0	12 0	0.5 0.0	2,623 495
				3 4	263 6,660	34.1 100.0	439 0	56.9 0.0	0	0.0 0.0	58 0	7.5	8 0	1.0 0.0	2 0	0.3 0.0	1	0.1	771 6,660
	CT			1	8,500	87.9	1,170	12.1	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	9,670
	DC(*)			1,	7,382	100.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	. 0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	7,382
	IN(**)			1 2 3 4 5	252 2,149 1,501 945 1,300	36.4 62.8 53.7 47.4 38.3	0 426 489 579 1,418	0.0 12.5 17.5 29.0 41.8	407 0 0 0 0	58.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	31 779 747 362 524	4.5 22.8 26.7 18.1 15.5	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	3 66 57 109 148	0.4 1.9 2.0 5.5 4.4	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	693 3,420 2,794 1,995 3,390
-	MI			1 2 3 4 5 6 7	1,371 2,078 2,646 1,287 870 65 128	45.9 60.9 65.8 48.8 36.6 20.9 16.8	568 300 135 321 248 134 128	19.0 8.8 3.4 12.2 10.4 43.1 16.8	647 794 1,126 748 570 71 181	21.6 23.3 28.0 28.4 23.9 22.8 23.8	366 209 82 235 344 27 268	12.2 6.1 2.0 8.9 27.1 8.7 35.3	9 23 30 8 3 2 2	0.3 0.7 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.3	29 8 1 37 45 4 53	1.0 0.2 0.1 1.4 1.9 1.3 7.0	0 0 0 0 8 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0	2,990 3,412 4,020 2,636 2,380 311 760
	MT			1	375	28.8	266	20.5	0	0.0	651	50.1	8	0.6	0	0.0	0	0.0	1,300
	NJ	-		1 2 3 4 5	42,394 2,899 7,099 1,676 1,166	72.2 100.0 87.9 75.8 53.7	16,318 0 0 0 0	27.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 317 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0	0 0 944 47 130	0.0 0.0 11.7 2.1 6.0	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 31 172 876	0.0 0.0 0.4 7.8 40.3	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	58,712 2,899 8,074 2,212 2,172

late		Lab Number	Munic Ager	. Law Enf. acies %	State Law Agencies	r Enf. %	Task Forces	%	County Law Agenc	Enf. ies %	Federal Law Agencies	Enf. %	Other Law Agencies	Enf. %	Non CJ Agencies	<b>%</b>	From Al Agencies
Ĥ		· 1 ·	43	45.3	1	1.1	32	33.7	19	20.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	95
	_	2	406	59.7	1	0.1	. 0	0.0	268	39.4	0	0.0	0	0.0	5	0.7	680
		3	4,988	99.4	0	0.0	0	0.0	28	0.6	. 0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	5,016
		4	3,590	89.0	6	0.1	162	4.0	151	3./	38	0.9	86	2.1	0	0.0	4,033
		5	. 0	0.0	. 0	0.0	0	0.0	119	100.0	. 0	0.0	0	0.0	U	0.0	119
		07	570	0.0	0	0.0	141	10.0	. 10	0.0	0	0.0		0.0	0	0.0	U 707
		. /.	220	26 /	. 0	0.0	141	19.4	12	17 5	0	0.0	2	0.5	U D	0.0	121
		0	1 075	30.4 86.9	10	0.0	412	45.0	138	10.1	10	0.0	58	1 2	7	0.0	JU4 1 607
		10	4,0/5	00.0	- 0	0.4	J2 0	0.0	-470	. 10.1	10	0.2	0	0.0	ó	0.1	1,037
		11	0	0.0	2 252	100 0	<u>`````````````````````````````````````</u>	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	2 252
		12	299	57.6	3	0.6	Ö	0.0	217	41.8	- 0 -	0.0	0	0.0	õ	0.0	519
SD		1	74	23.6	32	10.2	174	55.6	15	4.8	18	5.8	0	0.0	0	0.0	313
		2	315	26.6	419	35.4	80	6.8	342	28.9	9	0.8	14	1.2	5	0.4	1,184
		3	186	33.0	24	4.3	336	59.6	14	2.5	• 0	0.0	4	0.7	0	0.0	564
X		1	2,564	42.4	1,509	25.0	1,431	23.7	462	7.6	0	0.0	82	1.4	0	0.0	6,048
		2	2,957	54.6	1,392	25.7	452	8.3	603	11.1	0	0.0	13	0.2	. U	0.0	5,41
		3	2,123	42.0	1,021	21.8	10 007	10.5	1,803	24.2	16	1.0	30	0.4	0	0.0	7,40
			11 277	12.9	432	28 1	10,097	2 0	307	3.9	10	0.1	14	0.0	0	0.0	21 33
		5	3 036	25 1	2 556	20.1	1 020	12 5	1 870	21 6	103	1 2	10	0.1	0	0.0	21,000 8 650
		. 7	4 394	54 7	1 725	23.5	403	5 0	1 437	17 9	27	0.3	50	0.1	0	0.0	8 036
		8	10,811	48.5	6.410	28.8	2.033	9.1	2,909	13.1	104	0.5	8	0.0	õ	0.0	22.275
		9	683	40.7	387	23.1	387	23.1	218	13.0	1	0.1	ĭ	0.1	ō	0.0	1.677
		10	4.869	41.8	3.029	26.0	1.794	15.4	1.912	16.4	ō	0.0	- 48	0.4	õ	0.0	11.652
		11	3,773	54.7	2,259	32.8	133	1.9	715	10.4	2	0.0	10	0.1	0	0.0	6,892
		12	4,869	34.0	5,601	39.1	583	4.1	3,081	21.5	71	0.5	135	0.9	0	0.0	14,340
г		1	1,216	28.0	749	17.2	1,420	32.7	870	20.0	30	0.7	60	1.4	3	0.1	4,348
١		1	4,392	73.5	256	4.3	0	0.0	1,289	21.6	13	0.2	0	0.0	26	0.4	5,976
		2	1,749	54.8	632	19.8	0	0.0	730	22.9	82	2.6	0	0.0	0	0.0	3,19
		3	1,339	63.6	187	8.9	0	0.0	354	16.8	35	1.7	. 4	0.2	186	8.8	2,105
		4	759	68.8	79	7.2	0	0.0	266	24.1	0	0.0	0	0.0	- 0	0.0	1,104
		5	393	35.2	158	14.2	0	0.0	560	50.2	4	0.4	0	0.0	0	0.0	1,11
		6	1,131	69.0	211	12.9	0	0.0	286	17.4	1	0.1	0	0.0	11	0.7	1,640

(\*\*)

Excludes data from one Indiana crime laboratory that provides analyses data in an incompatible format.

		· .	· ·	·· · ·	-				ТА	BLE 11										
					TOTAL I	NUMBE	ER OF ANA	LYSES	COMPLE	FED BY	STATE /	ND SU	BSTANCI	e ident	IFIEL	)				
La	Cann. b Anal. # Comp.	%	Coc. Anal. Comp.	% %	Stim. Anal. Comp.	%	Opiato Anal. Comp	es . %	Hallı Anal Com	ис. р. %	Dej Ana Cor	p. al. mp. %	Incon Subs Com	cL 1p.	%	Othe Ana Con	r L 1p. %	Non-cont. Anal. Comp.	%	Total
AZ	1,120 276 422 0	42.7 55.8 54.7 0.0	574 110 97 0	21.9 22.2 12.6 0.0	192 14 87 0	7.3 2.8 11.3 0.0	142 22 13 0	5.4 4.4 1.7 0.0	50 4 13 0	1.9 .8 1.7 0.0	57 8 9 0	2.2 1.6 1.2 0.0	284 44 33 0	10.8 8.9 4.3 0.0		126 10 72 0	4.8 2.0 9.3 0.0	77 7 25 0	2.9 1.4 3.2 0.0	2,622 495 771 0
СТ	12,745	18.5	30,321	43.9	0	0.0	16,598	24.0	153	0.2	7,788	11.3	0	0.0-		0	0.0	1,470	2.1	69,075
DC(*)	329	4.0	4,496	61.0	5	0.1	476	6.0	1,449	20.0	19	0.1	0	0.0		116	2.0	492	7.0	7,382
IN(**)	395 1,229 1,461 1,000 2,135	57.0 49.0 57.0 46.4 60.0	98 643 482 275 437	14.1 25.6 18.8 12.8 12.3	5 34 46 217 125	0.7 1.4 1.8 10.1 3.5	6 105 27 42 67	0.9 4.2 1.1 1.9 1.9	22 37 51 14 51	3.2 1.5 2.0 0.6 1.4	18 58 132 103 171	2.6 2.3 5.1 4.8 4.8	0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	ж	5 249 219 273 242	0.7 9.9 8.5 12.7 6.8	144 154 147 230 332	20.8 6.1 5.7 10.7 9.3	693 2,509 2,565 2,154 3,560
	1,585 1,227 1,345 1,175 1,190 220 628	46.4 33.0 30.5 39.2 44.3 66.3 65.8	1,279 1,965 2,321 1,392 931 37 134	37.4 52.9 52.7 46.4 34.6 11.1 14.0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	89 120 242 67 50 6 18	2.6 3.2 5.5 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.9	50 55 49 55 56 9 15	1.5 1.5 1.1 1.8 2.1 2.7 1.6	48 51 75 53 75 6 7	1.4 1.7 1.8 2.8 1.8 0.3	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0		19 11 9 14 60 0 3	0.6 0.3 0.2 0.5 2.2 0.0 0.3	348 287 365 241 327 54 149	10.2 7.7 8.3 8.0 12.2 16.3 15.6	3,418 3,716 4,406 2,997 2,689 332 954
TM C	533	41.0	257	19.8	210	16.2	24	1.8	29	2.2	15	1.2	34	2.6		24	1.8	174	13.4	1,300

Continued on following page.

#### TABLE 11 (cont'd)

#### TOTAL NUMBER OF ANALYSES COMPLETED BY STATE AND SUBSTANCE IDENTIFIED

	Lab #	Cann. Anal. Comp.	%	Coc. Anal. Comp.	<b>%</b>	Stim. Anal. Comp.	%	Opiates Anal. Comp.	%	Halluc. Anal. Comp.	%	Dep. Anal. Comp.	%	Inconcl. Subs. Comp.	%	Other Anal. Comp.	%	Non-cor Anal. Comp.	nt. %	Total
υ	1 2 3 4 5	25,065 806 1,995 551 673	32.0 24.6 24.7 27.9 56.3	33,893 1,683 4,301 1,116 359	43.4 51.4 53.3 56.4 30.0	1,440 73 200 6 20	1.8 2.2 2.5 0.3 1.7	6,688 398 492 146 13	8.5 12.1 6.1 7.4 1.1	1,443 87 8 35 4	1.8 2.7 0.1 1.8 0.3	1,630 185 124 43 7	2.1 5.6 1.5 2.2 0.6	0 11 0 23 0	0.0 0.3 0.0 1.2 0.0	1,380 0 18 2 82	1.8 0.0 0.2 0.1 6.9	6,539 33 936 55 38	8.4 1.0 11.6 2.8 3.2	78,078 3,276 8,074 1.977 1,196
ЮН	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	166 206 1,483 2,144 0 51 234 435 1,233 1,888 1,432 50	46.1 30.5 30.2 51.7 0.0 100.0 32.6 47.9 27.7 28.2 64.0 27.9	88 243 2,659 891 0 0 313 268 1,833 2,108 253 61	24.4 35.9 54.1 21.5 0.0 0.0 43.7 29.5 41.2 31.5 11.3 34.1	3 31 44 211 0 0 1 7 64 1,129 73 8	0.8 4.6 0.9 5.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.8 1.4 16.9 3.3 4.5	0 0 182 216 0 0 1 1 116 45 42 12	0.0 0.0 3.7 5.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.8 2.6 0.7 1.9 6.7	0 14 129 222 0 0 6 41 47 176 11 0	0.5 2.1 2.6 5.4 0.0 0.0 0.8 4.5 1.1 2.6 0.5 0.0	46 11 8 168 0 0 6 37 390 225 117 9	12.8 1.6 0.2 4.1 0.0 0.8 4.1 8.8 3.4 5.2 5.0	4 98 0 0 0 76 0 0 0 0 0	1.1 14.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 9 25 39 0 0 2 2 101 30 28 5	0.0 1.3 0.5 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.2 2.3 0.4 1.3 2.8	53 64 387 253 0 0 78 117 660 1,092 281 34	14.7 9.5 7.9 6.1 0.0 10.9 12.9 14.9 16.3 12.6 19.0	360 675 4,917 4,144 0 51 717 908 4,444 6,693 2,237 179
PA	1 2 3 4 5 6	692 603 523 1,217 752 436	24.6 24.6 43.9 35.5 41.4 44.5	1,341 1,122 381 1,326 625 258	47.7 45.9 32.0 38.7 34.4 26.3	321 291 125 257 146 163	11.4 11.9 10.5 7.5 8.0 16.6	70 213 29 159 81 6	2.5 8.7 2.4 4.6 4.5 0.6	185 17 16 47 30 17	6.6 0.7 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.7	41 56 27 34 54 28	1.5 2.3 2.3 1.0 3.0 2.9	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	123 117 71 185 82 49	4.4 4.8 6.0 5.4 4.5 5.0	37 28 19 199 45 23	1.3 1.1 1.6 5.8 2.5 2.3	2,810 2,447 1,191 3,424 1,815 980
SD	1 2 3	114 693 53	36.5 58.7 20.9	55 118 79	17.6 10.0 31.2	0 1 2	0.0 0.1 0.8	2 3 1	0.6 0.3 0.4	5 11 11	1.6 0.9 4.3	3 14 3	1.0 1.2 1.2	2 0 0	0.6	93 89 14	29.8 7.5 5.5	38 252 90	12.2 21.3 35.6	312 1,181 253

#### TABLE 11 (cont'd)

#### TOTAL NUMBER OF ANALYSES COMPLETED BY STATE AND SUBSTANCE IDENTIFIED

	Lab #	Car Ana Comp.	%	Coc Ana Con	аL ар. %	Sti An Cor	m. al. np. %	Opiate Anal. Comp	es . %	Halluc. Anal. Comp.	%	Dep. Anal Comp.	5%	Inconcl. Subs. Comp.	%	Other Anal. Comp.	%	Non-cont AnaL Comp.	%	Total
hτ							_													
1	1	1,446	37.9	559	14.7	1,104	29.0	129	3.4	24	0.6	5	0.1	0	0.0	211	5.5	333	8.7	3,811
	3	1,229	47.7	1.554	23.U 40.0	213	6.3	478	12.3	63	3.9	10	0.0	. U	0.0	77	2.0	239	7.4 6 1	2,5/4
	4	1,511	48.0	772	24.5	27	0.9	555	17.6	9	0.3	ŏ	0.0	. Ö	0.0	97	3.1	174	5.5	3,145
{ .	5	2,680	28.8	2,184	23.5	2,600	27.9	296	3.2	157	1.7	16	0.2	0	0.0	508	5.5	867	9.3	9,308
Į.	6	3,069	44.6	2,642	38.4	273	4.0	69	1.0	132	1.9	6	0.1	0	0.0	195	2.8	488	7.1	6,874
8	/ 2	2,258	51.1	1,118	25.3	340	1.1	155	3.5	100	3.8	2	0.0	0	0.0	96	2.2	2/9	6.3	4,415
	9	604	34.7	542	31.1	190	10.9	161	9.2	3	0.1	2	0.1	õ	0.0	- 73	4.2	166	9.5	1,741
l	10	4,582	51.4	2,253	25.3	1,140	12.8	59	0.7	16	0.2	20	0.2	Õ	0.0	253	2.8	586	6.6	8,909
<u>  </u>	11	4,071	60.0	1,010	14.9	1,079	15.9	24	0.4	21	0.3	5	0.1	0	0.0	173	2.	399	5.9	6,782
	12	2,646	52.1	886	17.5	899	17.7	113	2.2	59	1.2	16	0.3	0	0.0	217	4.3	240	4.7	5,076
ит		•																		
	1	2,845	44.4	1,592	24.9	577	9.0	268	4.2	156	2.4	166	2.6	372	5.8	8	0.1	417	6.5	6,401
NA.																				
	1	41,502	44.9	21,984	23.8	662	0.7	6,547	7.1	7,559	8.2	767	0.8	0	0.0	4,016	4.4	9,280	10.0	92,317
WA																				
li	1	1,571	21.5	3,722	50.9	390	5.3	856	11.7	71	1.0	78	1.1	0	0.0	0	0.0	621	8.5	7,309
	2	1,533	45.2	1,167	34.4	- 228	6.7	131	3.9	76	2.2	58	1.7	0	0.0	0	0.0	201	5.9	3,394
1	3	225	10.8	1,082	51.9	185	8.9	242	11.6	2/	1.3	49	2.4	0	0.0	12	0.6	262	12.6	2,085
	5	240	16.6	488	33.8	428	29.6	40	2.8	29	2.0	20	1.0	0	0.0	32	2.2	168	11.6	1.445
	6	288	11.9	1,512	62.3	156	6.4	230	9.5	26	1.1	28	1.2	0	0.0	17	0.7	170	7.0	2,427
1																				
	Not	e: The	follow	ving abbr	eviation	s have b	een used	for col	umn hea	dings:										
-	Can	n. = Canı	nabis	Coc. =	Cocaine	Stim.	= Stimu	lant Ha	alluc.	= Halluci	noqens	Dep. ≠	Depressan	t Incon	c]. =	Inconclus	ive			
	Non	-cont. =	Non-co	ontrolled	•						J									
	(*)	DC (	data re	eflect Me	tropolit	an Polic	e Depart	ment act	ivity o	nly.	· .									
	(**)	Fvo	ludes :	lata from	ono Ind	iono oni	mo labor	atony th	nt nnev	idoo anal	Vone de	to in he	incompeti	ble form	.+					
		LXC	iuues (	ara ii Olli	one mu	iana chi	me tanor	atory th	at prov	ives allal	yses ud	ra III dli	ncompati	nie iorma	16.					

## TABLE 12

## STAFF AND WORKLOAD INDICATORS BY STATE AND LABORATORY

	State	Lab Number	Total Number Of Analyses Completed	Average Number Of Drug Analysts*	Average Turnaround Time**	Ratio Drug Exam. Vs. Total # Examiners***	Average Number of Analyses Per Examiner****
,	IN****	* 1 2 3 4 5	693 2,509 2,565 2,154 3,560	1.0 2.3 2.0 2.0 2.1	14.1 27.0 22.5 12.0 19.5	1.0 - - -	173.3 280.3 320.6 269.3 419.9
	MI	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	3,418 3,716 4,406 2,997 2,689 332 954	3.8 5.8 5.5 3.8 3.3 1.0 2.0	9.0 2.7 2.5 1.8 11.1 22.5 5.0	.1 .2 .2 .1 .1 .2	231.3 164.1 206.0 201.7 210.7 83.0 119.3
	MT	1	1,300	2.0	19.5	.2	162.5
	NJ	1 2 3 4 5	78,078 3,276 8,074 1,977 1,196	36.3 2.3 0.0 2.8	22.5 90.0 8.5 37.5 10.0	.5 .9 .0 .7	537.7 546.1 184.2
	он	1 2 3 4 5	360 676 4,917 4,144	1.0 1.5 5.5 2.5 2.0	15.0 7.3 1.5 14.0 1.0	.9 .3 .5 .2 1.0	90.0 112.7 225.2 414.4
		6 7 8 9 10 11 12	51 717 908 4,444 6,693 2,237 179	2.0 1.0 2.5 7.0 2.0 1.0	21.5 1.4 10.2 30.0 4.0 61.4	- .8 .2 1.0 .5 1.0	- 142.5 227.0 444.4 239.0 279.6 59.7
	PA	1 2 3 4 5 6	2,810 2,447 1,191 3,424 1,851 980	4.9 4.8 2.4 5.8 3.4 2.0	28.1 31.2 21.4 28.8 3.8 11.2	.7 .6 .5 .6 .5 .5	144.3 131.0 125.4 145.6 134.4 124.9
	SD	1 2 3	312 1,181 253	1.1 2.0	1.6 4.0 3.0	1.0 1.0	75.3 149.0 -
	TX	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	3,881 2,574 3,889 3,145 9,308 6,874 4,415 9,517 1,741 8,909 6,782 5,076	2.0 1.0 2.0 5.3 3.0 2.0 2.8 2.0 3.8 3.0 2.8	11.5 8.3 4.5 4.0 10.0 40.0 21.8 6.3 15.0 26.8 99.5 12.8	1.0 1.0 .5 1.0 .8 .4 .4 .7 1.0 .8 .5 .2	476.4 643.5 486.1 393.1 449.6 572.8 551.2 885.2 217.6 609.3 565.2 478.0

#### TABLE 12 (cont'd)

	State	Lab Number	Total Number Of Analyses Completed	Average Number Of Drug Analysts*	Average Turnaround Time**	Ratio Drug Exam. Vs. Total # Examiners**	Average Number of Analyses * Per Examiner****	
	UT	. 1	6,401	2.8	6.5	.4	591.5	
	٧A	1	92,473	24.8	_	.2	940.7	
	WA	1 2 3 4 5 6	7,309 3,394 2,085 993 1,445 2,427	8.0 2.0 1.5 1.0 1.0 2.0	27.1 6.0 40.2 45.0 9.0 10.7	.4 .3 .4 .5 .6	228.4 424.3 353.8 248.3 361.3 303.4	
"_" *		Data not reported. Represents the number of drug analysts at the close of a reporting quarter,						
**		Represents the average turnaround time for each reporting quarter, averaged over four quarters.						
***		Represents the ratio of the number of full-time equivalent drug analysts to total analysts in a laboratory, averaged over four quarters. Represents the total number of analyses completed in a guarter divided by the						
****		number of full-time equivalent drug analysts at the close of a quarter, averaged over four quarters. Excludes data from one Indiana crime laboratory that provides analyses data in an incompatible format.						

## STAFF AND WORKLOAD INDICATORS BY STATE AND LABORATORY

#### REFERENCES

Bureau of Justice Assistance. <u>FY1988 Report on Drug Control</u>. U.S. Department of Justice, Government Printing Office, Washington, DC.

Criminal Justice Statistics Association. Interim Report (Consortium Project). Washington, DC: 1988.

Criminal Justice Statistics Association. Data Analysis Plan (Consortium Plan). Washington, DC: 1988.

Criminal Justice Statistics Association. <u>Preliminary Report on Task Forces and Crime Laboratories</u>. Washington, DC: 1989.

Criminal Justice Statistics Association. <u>Drug Control and Use Surveys: A Potential Tool for Developing</u> <u>State Drug Control Strategies</u>. Washington, DC: 1990.

Federal Bureau of Investigations. <u>Uniform Crime Reporting National Incident-Based Reporting System</u>, <u>Volume 1 Data Collection Guidelines</u>. U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC: 1988.

## THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE STATISTICS ASSOCIATION

#### Staff

Hildy Saizow, Executive Director James "Chip" R. Coldren, Jr., Research Director James Zepp, Computer Center Manager G. Thomas Steele, Training Specialist Scott Mutchler, Programmer/Analyst Kenneth R. Coyle, Research Associate Bethany A. Woodard, Information Specialist Kellie Dressler, Research Associate Karen Gasson, Program Manager Sophia Carr, Research Assistant Charleen Cook, Meeting Coordinator Ali Burnett, Office Manager Loyce Craft, Administrative Secretary

#### Executive Committee

#### President

Stephen Rickman Director Statistical Analysis Center Office of Criminal Justice Plans and Analysis District of Columbia

#### Vice-President

Mary J. Mande SAC Director, Research Unit Division of Criminal Justice Department of Public Safety Colorado

Secretary-Treasurer

Paul Stageberg Director Vermont Criminal Justice Center Vermont

#### Delegates

Allan R. Barnes SAC Director Justice Center University of Alaska Alaska

Michael J. Sabath Director, Center for Criminal Justice Research and Information Indiana Criminal Justice Institute Indiana

Past President

John P. O'Connell Director Statistical Analysis Center Delaware

The Criminal Justice Statistics Association (CJSA) is a private, non-profit association dedicated to expanding the capabilities of states to collect, analyze, and report statistical information which informs policymakers; encouraging cooperation among the states in addressing common policy related problems; promoting the exchange of information and transfer of technology within the criminal justice community; and facilitating liaison between the states and the Federal Government. CJSA has more than 180 members nationwide. These include directors of state Statistical Analysis Centers; managers, planners, and researchers from police, courts, and corrections agencies; and policy advisors and decisionmakers from administrative and legislative agencies.